
 

 

County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI (01785) 278502 

Please ask for Mandy Pattinson 
Email: 

mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 
 
Wednesday, 19 June 2019 
2.00 pm 

White Room, County Buildings, Martin Street, Stafford 

 
John Tradewell 

Director of Corporate Services 
11 June 2019 

 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 

1.  Apologies  
   
2.  Welcome to New Members  
   
3.  Declaration of Any other Business  
   
4.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 6 February 2019 (Pages 1 - 6) 
   
5.  An Update on Key Issues (Pages 7 - 12) 
   
 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 
 

   
6.  An Update on NASACRE (Pages 13 - 14) 
   
 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 
 

   
7.  The new Ofsted Education Framework - implications for the 

teaching of Religious Education 
(Pages 15 - 24) 

   
 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 
 

   



8.  Extension of Committee A - to include a representative of the 
Baha'i faith 

(Pages 25 - 26) 

   
 Report of the Director of Corporate Services  
   
9.  Update on the Explore-Engage-Reflect legacy, Westhill/NASACRE 

Project 
(Pages 27 - 30) 

   
 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 
 

   
10.  Monitoring Provision - An analysis of the survey to Schools on RE 

and Collective worship 
(Pages 31 - 46) 

   
 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 
 

   
11.  AREIAC's response to Commission on Religious Education's 

Report - Religion and World Views: The Way Forward and the REC 
response to the Government - December 2018 

(Pages 47 - 50) 

   
 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 
 

   
12.  Church of England Statement of Entitlement for RE (Pages 51 - 56) 
   
 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 
 

   
13.  Current Budget 2018/19 and Proposed New Budget 2019/20 (Pages 57 - 62) 
   
 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 
 

   
14.  Application for Variation of Practice (Pages 63 - 64) 
   
 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 
 

   
15.  Date of Future Meetings  
   
 The dates of the next SACRE meetings are scheduled for: 

Wednesday 6 November 2019  
Wednesday 5 February 2019 
Wednesday 24 June 2019 
Wednesday 18 November 2019 
 
All meetings are held at 2.00pm, in the White Room, County Building, 
Stafford,ST16 3AD. 

 

   
 
 
 
 
 



Membership 
 

Linda Goodwin 
Julie Thompson (Co-Optee) 
Sonia Andjelkovic 
Mrs J Grundy 
Diana Cutler 
Tajinder Singh 
G Devadason 
Rev. Preb. M. Metcalf 
(Chairman) 
Sam Kirwan 
Dr Laow Panyasiri 
Mohamed Parekh 
 

Sam Phillips 
Ian Lawson 
Lauren Nicholson Ward 
Mark Sutton 
Syed Hussain 
Judy Wyman 
Gabi Oldfield 
Vickie Longson 
Bob Spencer 
Lydia Bartlett 
Shaun Miles 
 

 





- 1 - 
 

MINUTES 
 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education Meeting - 6 February 2019 
 
Present:  Rev. Preb. M. Metcalf 
 
Linda Goodwin, Julie Thompson (Co-Optee), Diana Cutler, Sam Kirwan, Sam Phillips, 
Ian Lawson, Mark Sutton, Syed Hussain, Judy Wyman, Gabi Oldfield, Lydia Bartlett and 
Shaun Miles    
 
Apologies for absence:  Mohamed Parekh, Lauren Nicholson Ward, Vickie Longson 
and Bob Spencer 
 
Also in attendance – Mary Gale, Mandy Pattinson 
 
PART ONE 
 
15. Welcome to New Members 
 
The Chairman welcomed Shaun Miles, representing NAHT and Lydia Bartlett 
representing the Salvation Army. 
 
16. Declaration of Any Other Business 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 
17. Minutes of the SACRE Meeting held on 7 November 2018 
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the SACRE meeting held on 7 November 2018 be 
approved and signed by the Chairman.  There were no matters arising. 
 
18. An Update on Key Issues 
 
SACRE considered the report which covered the main issues affecting Religious 
Education (RE) since the last meeting.  Further to the report, the following information 
was provided: 
 
Continuing Professional Development – Mary Gale Informed Members that she had 
contacted 11 schools who had all taken up the opportunity to attend the RE networking 
events.  There had been concern that some of the subject leaders had not appeared to 
know that there was a revised statutory locally agreed RE syllabus.   
 
It was explained that the networking group was promoted through the school e-bags and 
through the school governor briefings.  A Member asked a question on the usage of the 
e-bag and if there was a way of monitoring how often and who opened the information.  
In response, SACRE was informed that the e-bag was sent to Headteachers and the 
Main Office in Schools and it could then be passed to all teachers within the school.  
However, it was not known how many schools disseminated the information.  The 
method of accessing the e-bag had now changed.  New access instructions had been 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 

- 2 - 
 

sent out to all users and this could be an opportunity to remind schools to circulate the 
information to relevant subject leads/teachers.   
 
There would also be a survey in the Spring e-bag for Local Authority schools and one of 
the first questions on the survey would be to ask if teachers are aware that there was an 
agreed RE syllabus. 
 
The Chairman informed SACRE that Mary Gale had been involved in writing the Entrust 
Guidance on the Local Agreed Syllabus.  She had also been asked to write termly 
National Governor Information updates for school governors, which included an update 
on RE matters.  The first of these updates had been provided in January 2019.  
Members congratulated her on this. 
 
NATRE Strictly RE Conference – There would be a further report presented to the 
next meeting on this item. 
 
Entrust – Advisor support – The Chairman informed Members that Mary Gale had 
been commissioned through Entrust to support SACRE for a further 12 months until the 
end of financial year 2020.  Members warmly welcomed this news. 
 
RESOLVED: 

a) That the report be noted. 
b) That Mary Gale be congratulated for writing the termly National Governor 

Information updates for school governors, which include an update on RE 
matters.  

 
19. NASACRE Update 
 
The Chairman informed the group that the next NASACRE Annual meeting was 
scheduled for the 22 May 2019 in Manchester.  The two main speakers would be 
Professor Julian Stone from York St Johns University, and Peter Bull, a Head of RE in 
Liverpool.  If a member wished to attend the event they were asked to contact Mary or 
the Chairman.   
 
Members felt that this was an opportunity to show what the local SACRE was doing, 
particularly the Westhill/NASACRE Legacy project.  Sam Phillips agreed to help with this 
promotion. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 
20. Applications for variation of practice 
 
There were none on this occasion. 
 
21. Update on the Westhill/NASACRE legacy project - Explore - Engage - 
Reflect 
 
SACRE were reminder that at the last meeting, the success of the project had been 
reported.  At that time Members suggested that any surplus budget should be used to 
extend the project and for it to be offered to more schools.  As a result of this, Mary Gale 

Page 2



 

- 3 - 
 

had contacted the schools who had not already accessed the project and with the 
support of the MEAS team and Youth Net, a further six schools had expressed an 
interest.  Academies were able to take part but maintained schools would be prioritised. 
 
A Member asked where the events were held as it was felt that some schools were not 
able to travel any distance due to cost.  It was explained that legacy project events were 
peripatetic and normally held in school settings, to minimise costs. 
 
The Chairman expressed particular interest in the diversity of the project and how 
people learnt to embrace difference.   
 
Julie Thompson asked if SACRE observers were able to attend one of the legacy 
project events.  It was confirmed that they could.  Julie was invited to attend St. Luke’s, 
Cannock on 27 March at 9.30am 
 
In previous years some projects had been funded through the SACRE budget.  
However, last year SACRE were not able to carry forward any budget surplus and 
unspent funding had been clawed back by the local authority.  This had been a different 
practice to previous years.  Attempts had been made to clarify exact budget figures, but 
these had not been forthcoming.  As a result, a budget update was not available at the 
meeting.  There was concern that by not using the grant in previous years, future grants 
could be lower. 
 
Councillor Sutton asked to have sight of the email trail and agreed to look at the 
circumstances around the budget clawback. 
 
RESOLVED:  

a) That the report be noted. 
b) That Mary Gale provide Councillor Sutton with details of the budget clawback. 

 
22. An analysis of Examination results 2018 
 
SACRE received a statistical analysis of the standards achieved in GCSE and GCE 
Advanced (A) Level Religious Studies (RS) by pupils examined in the summer of 2018.  
In accordance with the SACRE remit, the analysis of GCSE and A level results only took 
account of local authority maintained schools.  Members were informed that there had 
been changes to the GCSE regulations regarding assessment with the majority of pupils 
who undertook their GCSE studies being assessed on a scale of 1-9 not A* to C or A* to 
G grades.  This had implications for the analysis as comparisons to previous years 
could not be based on like for like. One school (Codsall High School) had been 
measured on the previous A* to G grades as the pupils had been entered for 
examination in Year 10, but the results are reported when they are in year 11. 
 
Overall, GCSE results for 2018 found that the national results of state funded schools in 
2018 for Grade 9-5 are at 59.7% (71.2% in 2017 A*-C) compared to Staffordshire’s 
53.5% (68.7% in 2017 A*-C).  The national results of state funded schools in 2018 for 
Grade 9-4 are at 71% (71.2% in 2017 A*-C) compared to Staffordshire’s 2018 Grade 9-
4 are at 66.7% (68.7% in 2017 A*-C). 
 

Page 3



 

- 4 - 
 

Staffordshire state funded school results were therefore 6.2% lower than the National 
when comparing grades 9-5.  Staffordshire state funded school results were 4.3% lower 
than the National when comparing grades 9-4.  It was difficult to make a direct 
comparison to 2017 results. 
 
Results for grades 9-1 Nationally were 98.3% and Staffordshire were 98.4% which was 
an improvement on the 2017 result of 77.1%.   
  
A close examination of the results table revealed that there were several schools 
achieving results well above the national average.  Of the 13 schools who entered 
students in for GCSE and comparing to the National results 2018 Grade 9-5 at 59.7%, 
six schools were above the National, one broadly in line and six below. 

 
Overall, there had been a dip in standards this year which could be attributed to the new 
grading and the raising of the challenge within the GCSE syllabus. 
 
In respect of A Level results, Staffordshire’s 2018 results (43.5%) were lower than 
national but an improvement on the 2017 results of 36.6%.  Results for all pupils show 
that although pupils in Staffordshire achieved below the national average at grades A*-
B, they performed very well across the full spectrum of grades A*-E.   
 
SACRE noted that two additional schools offered their pupils the opportunity to study for 
an A level qualification in Religious Studies in 2018 compared to 2017: Great Wyrley 
and Netherstowe High. 
 
SACRE requested that letters of congratulation be sent to those schools whose pupils 
had achieved commendably above the national average results for those achieving A*-C 
in GCSE RE.  They also agreed that letters should also be sent to those high achieving 
schools at A level. 
 
A question was asked regarding the support offered to schools who do not appear to 
perform well.  It was felt that these schools could be targeted with information on the RE 
network meetings which would offer support.  Again, SACRE was reminded that the 
priority was maintained schools and not academies.  A question was asked whether an 
academy could opt to change back to a maintained school.  SACRE were advised that 
this was almost impossible to do, only one instance nationally being known.   
 
RESOLVED:  

a) The report be received; and 
b) Letters of congratulations be sent to the schools whose pupils achieved results 

above the national average in GCSE and A Level Religious Studies. 
 
23. Government's response to the REC Commission on Religious Education's 
Report - Region and World Views:  The Way Forward and the REC response to the 
Government - December 2018 
 
SACRE were reminded that the Commission on Religious Education had published its 
final report in September 2018 which had been considered by this group at its meeting 
in November 2018.  The Commission had called for an overhaul of the subject to better 

Page 4



 

- 5 - 
 

reflect the diversity of modern society and to provide it with a different organisational 
structure.  
 
The Secretary of State (SoS) for Education, had responded to the report and a copy of 
this response was attached to the papers.  Along with this was the reaction from the 
Religious Education Council’s (REC) to the SoS’s respopnse.   The Commission’s report 
had been received and accepted by the REC and was being used as a lever to facilitate 
discussions with the Government to changes in how RE is managed.  It had been hoped 
that the Government would respond in a positive way.  However, the REC stated that 
the SoS response was disappointing; the SoS response had said that now was not the 
time to begin reforms needing new legislation. 
 
Members discussed the role of SACRE and how they worked differently in different 
areas.  In some communities faith was very prominent but there were also areas where 
people with no faith was increasing. 
 
Mary Gale informed SACRE that the Association of Religious Educations Inspectors, 
Advisors and Consultants (AREIAC) would be responding soon and that their response 
would be on the agenda for the next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 
24. The SACRE Budget 2018-19 and new budget 2019-20 
 
Unfortunately, the SACRE budget breakdown for the financial year 2018-19 was 
unavailable.  Previously, Members had been informed that £4,500 had been left in the 
budget and it had been agreed to use this to extend the  Westhill/NASACRE legacy 
project – Explore-Engage-Reflect.  There was also some additional expenditure due on 
photocopying and refreshments. 
 
Members were informed that as soon as an update was received it would be sent to all 
Members for information. 
 
RESOLVED – That the current budget position be noted and that a further update be 
sent to all Members as soon as practical. 
        
 
25. Any Other Business 
 
The Chairman took the opportunity to explain that the Membership of SACRE was split 
into four Committees.  Committee A comprised of Faith and World View organisations, 
Committee B comprised Church of England, Committee C Teacher associations and 
Committee D Local Authority.  Decisions were normally made by consensus, but if a 
vote was necessary, each Committee was allowed one vote each, the Chairman had a 
casting vote.  
 
The two new Members were asked to sign a code of conduct which all members had 
been asked to subscribe to.  It was felt that it may be appropriate for all members to re-
sign at the next meeting. 
 

Page 5



 

- 6 - 
 

Julie Thompson (Representing the Baha’i community) asked if she could become a full 
member and not just an observer.  The Chairman explained that this would involve a 
minor change in the constitution, and he would explore this further. 
 
RESOLVED:  

a) That all SACRE members sign the code of conduct at the next meeting. 
b) That the possibility of the constitution being amended to include a Baha’i 

representative be investigated and reported back to the next meeting. 
 
26. Date of next meeting 
 
RESOLVED – That the next SACRE meeting be held on Wednesday 19 June 2019, at 
2.00 pm in the White Room, County Buildings, Stafford. 
 
 
 

Rev. Preb. M. Metcalf 
Chairman 

 

Page 6



 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education  

19th June 2019  
                 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities   

An Update on Key Issues  

  

1 Purpose of Report  

  

1.1 To present members of SACRE with a brief update on key issues that have developed or 

arisen since the last meeting of SACRE.  
  

2 Summary  

  

2.1 Members of SACRE will receive a brief report on a number of key issues.  These are 

matters which have either been raised at previous SACRE meetings and which have 

moved forward or matters on which it is appropriate to brief members of SACRE.  
  

3 Recommendation  

  

3.1 That members of SACRE receive the report and note the contents  
  

  4  Background  

  

4.1 Since the Spring term meeting of the SACRE there have been developments in a 
number of areas which had previously been agenda items for SACRE or which have 
local or national importance for RE.    

  

4.2 Members will be briefed on these key developments.   
  

5   Equal Opportunities  

  

5.1 This report has been prepared in accordance with the County Council’s policies on equal 

opportunities.  
  

6   Financial implications  

  

6.1 Financial implications may be raised by individual items.  These have been dealt with 

     elsewhere or will be raised at future meetings of SACRE.  
  

  

Contact Officer 

Mary Gale    07816374873 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Key Issues 

Westhill Legacy project- Explore, Engage, Reflect in conjunction with Youth Net 

 

    This project has continued with the support of SACRE, see report on Agenda item 9. 

 

Continuous Professional Development 

 

Schools have been offered the opportunity to attend RE networking afternoons in the 

forthcoming Autumn 2019 and Spring 2020 terms, these networking afternoons are 

advertised in the training calendar.  

Eleven schools have already taken up the opportunity to share good practice through 

these networking afternoons especially with regard to assessment and updated 

information. 

Mary Gale has been commissioned to facilitate this CPD. 

 

Supporting Governors in understanding their Statutory requirements for RE 

 

All governors that buy into the Governor Services, Service Level Agreement have 

received an additional written summary and electronic update facilitated by Mary Gale on 

their statutory duties. This term reminders about statutory duties have been reiterated.  

Over 170 governors and a number of school and agency clerks have accessed the face 

to face training and many more have access to the Governor Information Pack. (GIP)  

 

This pack with some modifications has also been launched as a National Governor 

Information Pack, through a project funded by the DfE called Governor Space. 

    

NASACRE Conference and ARIEAC update 

Mary Gale attended the NASCARE annual conference in Manchester on May 22nd, 2019, 

with the Chair of Staffordshire SACRE- Michael Metcalf. See separate agenda item 6. 

Mary Gale will be attending a meeting in Birmingham on June 18th, 2019, so there will be   

an oral update at the meeting of 19th June 2019. 

 

Spreading the word about the work of SACRE 

Mary Gale was invited to attend a JAC- Joint Action committee meeting in Stafford on 4th 

June to update them on the work of SACRE and the situation regarding the teaching  

of RE and the state of CW in Staffordshire and in the nation in general. 

Mary received the following email after the meeting:- 

 

Thanks so much for a very valued input at out meeting yesterday. Your enthusiasm shines 

through as it always did! Personally, I really wish schools would make the most of singing 

and music as a valued part of collective worship. So glad two of the grandchildren are at a 

church school where this happens. Gill Hampton 

 

 

 

Page 8



NATRE Strictly RE conference- Heathrow London 

 

Mary attended the NATRE conference on 25th January 2019. She took part in a number 

of workshops including updates on latest creative curriculum resources to deliver quality 

RE and address curriculum balance. There were also key-note speakers on the revisiting 

aspects of Religious Literacy and exploring RE and the realities of religion and beliefs. 

Please see the following full conference report. 

 

On January 26th 2019, I attended my third ‘Strictly RE’ conference at the Park Inn by Radisson Hotel at 
Heathrow.  
Having previously attended a large scale conference such as this, I knew exactly what to expect. Some 
who were attending for the first time reported being overwhelmed by the number of exhibitors, 
delegates and officials.  
The venue was large in size, but I managed to navigate my way around and visited the 

majority of the exhibits by the end of the conference day. There was such a variety, ranging 

from publishing houses offering religious education literature such as Hodder Education and 

Oxford University Press, and Charities such as CAFOD and Christian Aid, religious 

organisations, exam boards and research centres (such as NATRE, RE today and Culham 

St Gabriel). Places of worship and museums also advertised their publications such as the 

Jewish Museum, St Paul’s Cathedral and the Mandela Exhibitions. Everyone was willing to 

provide information, free gifts and support my developing knowledge of Religious matters. 

The conference commenced with an introduction by Fiona Moss- executive officer of NATRE 

and a welcome from Ben Wood- the Chair of NATRE. The first key-note speech of the day 

was given by Professor Grace Davie of Exeter University. The focus of her talk was 

‘Religious Literacy.’  

She shared the results of a survey carried out among 250 social scientists relating to the 

issue of social progress. (Please refer to the International Panel on Social Progress-

www.ipsp.org) She had been asked to co-ordinate the chapter on Religion. She felt she 

needed to convince the panel that Religion has a part to play in social progress, especially 

when it comes to ‘lived religion’ not merely owning a belief. She firmly believes that policy 

makers need to pay attention to the role of religious ideas practices communities and 

leaders and the at these can be used for good or ill but should never be ignored. She 

advocated that good conversations in the classroom are vital in establishing a positive 

attitude towards religions and getting children interested in discussions about religion is 

really important as they may be the ones who go on to initiate change in society. She 

emphasised that religion can be toxic and therefore we need to teach it right and give 

children a wider picture of the nature of religion locally, nationally and globally so that they 

are properly equipped sand prepared for life in a pluralized society where 80% of the global 

population claim a religious identity.  

After the coffee break, I attended two from a wide choice of seminars: firstly “Playing Around 

in RE”, where Lat Blaylock (Adviser with RE Today), in his usual captivating manner, 

delivered a session on using a variety of game-based lessons to explore religious concepts, 

beliefs and practices that could be used form pupils at KS2/3/4.  

This session was interactive and extremely engaging, involving lots of fun and laughter, as 

well as some good discussion about how different approaches might be adapted to suit 

different settings and topics. Lat proposed that learning done as a game is powerful and 

encouraged delegates to make RE creative by inventing games of their own. I was reminded 

Page 9



of the “Talk-Less Teaching” approach advocated by Isabella Wallace, since many of the 

game strategies were very much student-led, with the teacher standing back as an observer, 

allowing them the opportunity to identify misconceptions that could be addressed later in the 

lesson, or explored through further discussion.  

My second seminar was “Conversations About RE Curriculum Balance” with Olivia Seymour 

(Assistant Director of Education at the Diocese of York) and Dr Kathryn Wright (Independent 

RE Adviser working for the Diocese of Norwich and St Culham Gabriel’s Trust) 

At the centre of their findings is the need for a multi-disciplinary approach to RE – the “three-

legged stool”: Theology, Philosophy and Human/Social Science (https://balancedre.org.uk). 

RE should encompass  

Believing 

Thinking 

Living  

There should be an equal balance of these across the RE curriculum. They were promoting 

more classroom conversations to develop pupils’ religious literacy. Delegates were asked to 

create a diamond 9 of a series of statements relating to the priorities and purposes of RE 

followed by discussion about the role of RE plays in the wider school curriculum. Two self-

auditing tools were provided to support delegates in self-auditing the balance of the three 

disciplines with their own RE curriculum as well as giving out sets of questions relating these 

to supporting questioning at different key stages. They also previewed a new sample 

assessment resource from the Diocese of Norwich offering a balanced approach to 

assessment in RE with age-related expectations. 

The final Keynote speech of the day was given by Lat Blaylock and Stephen Pett (both 

advisers for RE today). Their talk was entitled ‘RE and the realities of Religion and Belief. 

They spoke about the challenges of how to ensure high quality balanced RE provision 

without sanitising or ‘satanising’ (Joyce Miller- chair of RE council) They presented a case 

study into the ways religions are represented in society using excerpts from a new BBC 

GCSE series of 10 short biopics entitled ‘ A day in the Faith of …….’ They encouraged 

delegates to explore the wide range of other resources produced by the BBC to support 

teaching and learning in RE. Lat and Stephen advocated the use of accurate and fair 

representations of religions and quoted from the ‘Perils of Perception’ survey highlighting 

mis-conceptions about the nature and impact of religion ( www.brin.ac.uk British Religion in 

Numbers). They recommended the following two authors’ works as pertinent reading- James 

Sire-the Universe Next Door and Julian Baggini, ‘How the World Thinks’. 

The difference between orthodoxy and orthopraxy was explored- ‘truth- seeking’ and ‘way-

seeking’. They conferred that 4 year olds have an already strongly developed worldview 

before they even enter the classroom and that we as RE practitioners, will have a number of 

tensions to contend with as we also help to shape their worldview by what and how we 

teach.  

All in all, it was a very enjoyable day with lots of food for thought as well as practical ideas to 

support teachers in the classrooms.  I then shared this information in a net-work meeting two 

days later. 

It was lovely to meet with fellow practitioners and catch up with colleagues form across 

different setting and phases of education, sharing experiences and ideas. 

Page 10

https://balancedre.org.uk/
http://www.brin.ac.uk/


 

 

 

 

 

Page 11





 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education  

19th June 2019  
                  Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities  

An Update on NASACRE  

  

1 Purpose of Report  

  

1.1 To present members of SACRE with a brief update on key issues that have developed 

or arisen since the last meeting of SACRE.  
  

2 Summary  

  

2.1 Members of SACRE will receive a brief report on a number of NASACRE issues. These 

are matters on which it is appropriate to brief members of SACRE. This includes a 

summary report on the national conference in Manchester on 22nd May from the Chair 

and the adviser to SACRE. 
  

3 Recommendation  

  

3.1 That members of SACRE receive the report and note the contents  
  

4 Background  

  

4.1 NASACRE is the national body of SACRE’s.  National meetings are held to which 

members of SACRE are invited and encouraged to attend.  Issues are discussed which 

have local or national importance for RE.  
  

4.2 Members will be briefed on any key developments.    
   

5 Equal Opportunities  

  

5.1 This report has been prepared in accordance with the County Council’s policies on 

equal opportunities.  
  

6 Financial implications  

  

6.1 Financial implications may be raised by individual items.  These have been dealt with 

elsewhere or will be raised at future meetings of SACRE.  
  

  

Contact Officer:       

Mary Gale                            07816374873 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6





                  Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

June 19th 2019 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 

The new Ofsted Education Framework (EIF)- implications for the teaching of 

RE. 

1 Purpose of Report  

  

1.1 To present SACRE members with an opportunity to reflect on the 

      implications for the teaching of RE when referencing the revised 2019 

      Ofsted Education Inspection Framework and the revised Ofsted 

      Handbook, alongside the letter from the DfE to 

      NASACRE which outlines how schools have a duty to be compliant in the  

      teaching of RE. ( Appendix 1) 

 

2 Summary   

 2.1 Ofsted published its new education inspection framework in May 2019 along with 
the inspection handbook to be operational from September 2019. There is now a 
greater emphasis on the broad and balanced curriculum, including RE.  

 All pupils in maintained schools are required to study the basic curriculum, which 
includes the national curriculum, religious education and age-appropriate relationship 
and sex education. 

 Academies must include English, mathematics, science and religious education in 
their curriculum. This curriculum must be of similar breadth and ambition to that 
provided in a maintained school. 

 Spiritual development for pupils must include their ability to be reflective about their 
own beliefs (religious of otherwise) and perspective on life, as well as knowledge of, 
and respect for, different people’s faiths, feelings and values. 

 Provision is needed for the cultural development of pupils, including their ability to 
recognise, and value, the things we share in common across cultural, religious, 
ethnic, and socio-economic communities. 

 Inspectors will consider how the curriculum is taught; the extent to which teachers 
have expert knowledge of the subjects that they teach and are supported to address 
gaps in their knowledge 

 Further requirements relating to pupils’ spiritual, moral, social, cultural - and personal 

– development. 

The DfF sent its letter in March 2019 to NASACRE which outlines how 

schools have a duty to be compliant in the teaching of RE.  

 

3 Recommendation  

  

3.1 That members of SACRE use this opportunity to reflect on the new 

Ofsted framework and the information from the DfE and NASACRE. 

Members will be invited to take part in an interactive group activity 

where the question Why do we teach RE? will be ranked according 

to group discussion and preference. This should reflect the groups 

understanding of the purpose of RE and support their 

understanding of how this contributes to the broad and balanced 

curriculum. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



4 Background  

  

4.1 Ofsted, after a consultation period from January 2019 to Spring 

2019, have published its new framework and handbook plus 

associated documentation for schools to be ready for inspections 

from September 2019 onwards. A report by the Religious Education 

Council (REC) and the National Association of Teachers of RE 

(NATRE) in 2016 found that one in four (28%) state secondary 

schools were struggling to meet their legal obligation to teach pupils 

about major religions and other worldviews. Just a year later, an 

independent Commission on RE found that this figure had risen to 

one in three (33%) of state secondaries. 
  

5 Equal Opportunities  

  

5.1 This report has been prepared in accordance with the County 

Council’s policies on equal opportunities.  
  

6 Financial implications  

  

6.1 There are no immediate financial implications  

 

Contact Officer:   Mary Gale   07816374873  

Page 16

https://www.natre.org.uk/uploads/Free%20Resources/NATRE%20Primary%20Survey%202016%20final.pdf
https://www.natre.org.uk/uploads/Free%20Resources/NATRE%20Primary%20Survey%202016%20final.pdf
https://www.natre.org.uk/uploads/Free%20Resources/NATRE%20Primary%20Survey%202016%20final.pdf


  

 

Paul Smalley 

Chair, NASACRE

Department for Education 
Curriculum Policy Division 
2nd Floor 
Sanctuary Buildings 

London SW1 3BT 

Tel: 0370 000 2288 
www.gov.uk/dfe  
Email enquiry form: 
www.education.gov.uk/contactus/dfe  

Date: 22 March 2019

Dear Paul 

Compliance with the duty to teach Religious Education 

As discussed when we last met, I have spoken to a few representatives of SACREs over 

recent months about what can be done about schools that are failing to meet their 

obligations to teach RE – whether that is in accordance with an Agreed Syllabus or, in the 

case of academies and free schools, in line with their funding agreements. 

I thought it might be helpful if I set out what we expect of state funded schools and the 

steps to follow if these expectations aren’t met.  

The requirement to teach RE 

SACRE members will be familiar with the requirements on maintained schools, including 

the duty on those without a religious designation and voluntary controlled schools to follow 

the local Agreed Syllabus. 

Under the terms of their Funding Agreement with the Secretary of State, all academies 

(including free schools) must provide RE for all their registered pupils from age 5 to 18, 

except for those whose parents exercise the right of withdrawal. Each academy’s funding 

agreement should be published on its website, but can also be found on DfE’s ‘Compare 

Schools’ website (once you’ve found the school, select the ‘workforce and finance’ option 

and scroll down to the funding agreement. The requirement to teach RE is set out in the 

‘supplementary funding agreement’ for each school and also in newer ‘master funding 

agreements’ at multi-academy trust level).  

Generally speaking, academies with a religious designation (except ex-voluntary controlled 

schools) must teach within the tenets of the faith specified in their designation. They may, 

in addition, provide RE that is in line with a locally agreed syllabus and teach about other 

faiths if they choose. Academies with no religious designation must teach RE that ‘reflects 

that the religious traditions in Great Britain are, in the main, Christian whilst taking account 

of the teaching and practices of the other principal religions represented in Great Britain’. 

Academies are free to follow a locally agreed syllabus if they choose to.  

Unlike an agreed syllabus, funding agreements do not provide further detail of the RE to be 

taught. However, we would expect that all schools provide pupils with a curriculum that is 

high quality and promotes progression through the key stages, including in RE. The non-

Page 17

http://www.gov.uk/dfe
http://www.education.gov.uk/contactus/dfe
https://www.gov.uk/school-performance-tables
https://www.gov.uk/school-performance-tables
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/religious-education-guidance-in-english-schools-non-statutory-guidance-2010


2 

statutory guidance for RE (2010) also states that head teachers should ensure that ‘the 

subject is well led and effectively managed, and that standards and achievement in RE, 

and the quality of the provision, are subject to regular and effective self-evaluation.’  

Agreed syllabuses and requiring schools to teach an accredited qualification 

The issue of requiring schools to teach an accredited Religious Studies qualification is one 

that has come up recently and, if this is a requirement of an agreed syllabus, it’s important 

that wording is carefully chosen. For example, I’ve seen variations of the following text in 

agreed syllabuses: ‘It is a legal requirement and an entitlement that all students (other than 

those withdrawn by parental request) study RE at Key Stage 4 through an accredited 

course….’. 

This wording implies that it is a legal requirement to teach a RS qualification – whereas, in 

my view, the law does not directly state this ie. legislation doesn’t specifically require 

schools to teach RS.  Neither does it require each agreed syllabus to specify that schools 

must teach a full or short course RS GCSE or other accredited qualification.  However, the 

law does require relevant schools to follow the agreed syllabus. So, if an area’s syllabus 

says that an accredited RS qualification must be taught, then a school may be in breach of 

that statutory duty (ie. to follow the agreed syllabus) if it doesn’t do so.  

It is also the case that, if a school is required by the agreed syllabus to teach a RS 

qualification at key stage 4, and enters its pupils for this at the end of Year 10, it should still 

be teaching RE in Year 11. Otherwise, it does not meet the duty to provide RE as part of its 

curriculum to ‘all registered pupils at the school’. 

Handling reports that a school is not meeting its duty to teach RE 

Where a school appears to be failing to meet its obligations – either to comply with the 

agreed syllabus or to meet funding agreement requirements to teach RE – we would 

expect the LA or SACRE to follow this up; and to refer the case to DfE if it cannot be 

resolved locally. 

I’d recommend starting by contacting the school, outlining details of concerns and asking 

for comments. This allows the school an opportunity to correct misconceptions, provide 

clarifying information, or to resolve an issue. I’m also aware of cases where an LA officer or 

SACRE member has visited a school to discuss an issue in person to help them assess 

whether it is complying with the agreed syllabus.  

If talking to the school hasn’t resolved the issue, the LA or SACRE should refer the case or 

any queries to my team via CurriculumSupport.TEAM@education.gov.uk , providing details 

of the issue and with copies of any related correspondence or emails between them and 

the school. 

I hope that this is helpful. 

Best wishes 

 

Neil Lawson 

Page 18

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/religious-education-guidance-in-english-schools-non-statutory-guidance-2010
mailto:CurriculumSupport.TEAM@education.gov.uk


                                                                               
The new Ofsted Education Framework (EIF)- implications for the 

teaching of RE and Collective Worship 

 
This report is to be read alongside the letter from Neil Lawson from the DfE dated 22nd 

March 2019 regarding compliance with the duty to teach RE to Paul Smalley Chair of 

NASACRE. See Appendix. 

There is hope that the teaching of religious education (RE) in schools will improve thanks to 

changes made in the way regulator Ofsted inspects. Campaigners for better RE say the new 

school inspection framework will put more pressure on schools to prioritise the subject. It's 

understood two-day long inspections will now put greater emphasis on the broad curriculum 

while a small number of subjects will also be chosen as a focus for examination. These 

subjects could include religious education. 

Ben Wood from the National Association of Teachers of Religious Education (NATRE) in a 

recent interview stated that this is a good change of direction. 

He said: ‘Ofsted are really pushing the sense that they want a curriculum to be broad. I 

think there is a sense for people, both in education and the wider public of what's gone 

on in schools has been narrowed recently and there's a number of reasons for that. But 

what Ofsted are doing here is a saying that school curriculum has to be broad. And that 

means that while English, maths and science are important so is RE, and history, and 

geography, and art, and music, and PE, they're all important, they all have a role to play. 

It's very heartening to hear Ofsted saying that within that curriculum, RE has a crucial 

role to play.’ 

He added, “This is an important step in the right direction. The new Ofsted framework will 

mean that both provision for, and, quality of RE has a much higher profile during Ofsted 

inspections and, crucially, that it may be one of the subjects chosen for a deep dive review. 

We look forward to seeing how Ofsted enact this new framework and NATRE will continue to 

work closely with Ofsted on these matters 

REC Chief Executive, Rudolf Eliott Lockhart, said:  

‘Maintained schools and academies are already legally required to provide religious 
education for all pupils in every year. This new inspection framework should make it easier 
for inspections to be used to hold schools to account for failing to give pupils the RE to which 
they are entitled. Greater accountability through inspection was one of the key 
recommendations of the Commission on RE report last year, so we are encouraged to see 
that Ofsted is taking measures to address this gap’ 

Summary 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/inspecting-the-curriculum 

The above referenced document from May 2019 shows how inspectors will be inspecting 

across a range of subjects in schools. They will be operating a three-stage model when 

evaluating the quality of education (this is at the heart of the inspection framework), which 

includes a scrutiny of the broad and balanced curriculum. The three-stage model includes:- 

Page 19

https://www.religiouseducationcouncil.org.uk/about/rec-board/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/inspecting-the-curriculum


Top level view- this is where inspectors explore what subjects are on offer, and why and to 

whom. 

Deep dive- this is where inspectors immerse them-selves completely in inspecting 3-5 

subjects, gathering evidence on the intent, implantation and impact over this sample of 

subjects. 

Bringing it together-this is where inspectors will bring together all the evidence and check 

whether subjects are delivered in a systematic manner, where inspectors gather additional 

evidence. 

RE could be one of the 3-5 chosen subjects to be inspected. 

Guidelines for inspections from September 2019 require schools to ensure pupils can reflect 

their own religious beliefs as well as having knowledge and respect for others. Schools will 

also have to prove that teachers have expert knowledge of the subjects that they teach.  

Introduction 

The current framework, which is operation until September 2019, has offered a degree of 

accountability to schools, for example with references in Ofsted reports to schools achieving 

the RE Quality Mark. A small number of schools have been criticised for failure to provide 

RE at all. The current framework however does not lend itself to a thorough examination of 

the curriculum, especially because inspections can last only one day. One of the effects of 

this is that schools that are non-compliant with their Agreed Syllabus or in the case of 

academies, their funding agreements, appear to be inspected and not challenged about 

these failings at all.  

The new framework- the Education Inspection Framework (EIF) reverses this trend. 

(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/education-inspection-framework 

Inspections will last two days and there will be a much greater emphasis on the curriculum, 

and this could just as easily be RE as any other subject.  

A bonus from this approach is that over time, the information collected about each individual 

subject could (and should) be collated to create subject reports that identify national trends. 

Schools will be inspected using 4 key judgement areas 

 Quality of Education 

 Behaviour and attitudes 

 Personal development 

 Leadership and management 

And either Early Years education or 6th Form provision depending on the school phase. 

They will use a four-point grading scale in all inspections to make the principal judgements: 

grade 1 – outstanding, grade 2 – good, grade 3 – requires improvement, grade 4 – 

inadequate. 

Commentary in Detail 

Here are some sections of the school inspection handbook which you may find interesting: 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_da

ta/file/805369/School_inspection_handbook_S5_updated_  

1.Paragraph 14  

Page 20

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/education-inspection-framework
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/805369/School_inspection_handbook_S5_updated_
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/805369/School_inspection_handbook_S5_updated_


‘in a risk assessment, we analyse: school workforce census data’  

This contains each secondary school’s report on the number of hours of teaching provided in 

each school year for each subject. The National Association for the Teaching of RE 

(NATRE) are very interested in this report and will be encouraging Ofsted to flag any school 

reporting minimal or no hours of Religious Education using its algorithm so that this can be 

followed up during an inspection. 

2. Paragraph 22 

  In addition, exempt schools may be inspected between risk assessments if:  

 ‘We have received a qualifying complaint that, taken alongside other available evidence, 

suggests that we should inspect the school- concerns are identified about the curriculum 

(including if the statutory requirement to publish information to parents is not met)’ 

SACREs, parents and others are beginning to use the formal complaints process when 

schools fail to provide the appropriate level of provision for RE. We will be seeking 

clarification from Ofsted about how complaints, especially those that reach the Secretary of 

State, can be made available to Ofsted inspectors. 

3. Paragraph 44 

OFSTED will: 

‘report on any failure to comply with statutory requirements when they form part of the 

inspection framework and evaluation schedule, including those relating to the workforce’ 

It is not clear if or how this might identify schools failing to meet statutory requirements in 

relation to RE and CW, but it’s a start. 

4. Paragraph 166 

‘Before making a final judgement on overall effectiveness, inspectors will always consider 

the spiritual, moral, social and cultural development of pupils at the school, ...’ 

Attention to spiritual, moral, social and cultural development in the current framework for 

inspection has often led to mention of good practice in relation to RE in inspection reports. 

The new framework specifically mentions religious education in this section which should 

clarify expectations. (paragraph 216 and 219) 

5. Paragraph 172 

‘All pupils in maintained schools are expected to study the basic curriculum, which includes 

national curriculum, religious education and age-appropriate relationship and sex education. 

Academies are expected to offer all pupils a broad curriculum that should be similar in breath 

and ambition.” 

Footnote 68 “… academies must include English, mathematics, science and religious 

education in their curriculum.’ 

This paragraph has the potential to have the greatest impact on the issue of accountability in 

RE. The expectation is that even given academy freedoms, (see 173 below), the curriculum 

should be similar in breadth and ambition as the curriculum offered in maintained schools. 

The implication is that just as the national curriculum is to be used as a benchmark for 

breadth and ambition for the core and foundation subjects, so the curriculum for RE must be 

as broad and ambitious as that required of LA maintained schools. 

Page 21



6. Paragraph 173 

‘We will judge schools taking radically different approaches to the curriculum fairly. We 

recognise the importance of schools’ autonomy to choose their own curriculum approaches. 

If leaders are able to show that they have thought carefully, that they have built a curriculum 

with appropriate coverage, content, structure and sequencing, and that it has been 

implemented effectively, then inspectors will assess a school’s curriculum favourably’ 

Some teachers have expressed concern about this paragraph because they believe it might 

provide a means of explaining away the lack of a rigorous and comprehensive RE 

curriculum. Time will tell if this concern is justified. It is difficult to see however, how a 

curriculum could be said to have ‘appropriate coverage and content’ if a subject which is so 

unequivocally listed as a requirement for inclusion were missing or covered in a tokenistic 

manner. We also note that the recent letter to NASACRE from the DFE clearly states that 

RE must be taught in all year groups. This is further emphasised in paragraph 177 below 

7. Paragraph 177 

‘Sources of evidence specific to curriculum intent. Inspectors will draw evidence about 

leaders’ curriculum intent principally from discussion with senior and subject leaders. 

Inspectors will explore: whether leaders are following the national curriculum and basic 

curriculum or, in academies, a curriculum of similar breath and ambition’ 

8. Paragraph 180 -181 

Implementation 

Paragraph 180. ‘In evaluating the implementation of the curriculum, inspectors will primarily 

evaluate how the curriculum is taught at subject and classroom level’ 

Paragraph 181. Research and inspection evidence suggest that the most important factors 

in how, and how effectively, the curriculum is taught and assessed are that: Teachers have 

expert knowledge of the subjects that they teach. If they do not, they are supported to 

address gaps in their knowledge so that pupils are not disadvantaged by ineffective 

teaching’ 

Inspection reports based on the current Ofsted Framework frequently mention the 

detrimental impact of teachers’ poor subject knowledge on the quality of RE. This is more 

frequently mentioned in reports on primary schools. The text in this paragraph of the new 

handbook is much clearer about expectations on schools. 

9. Paragraph 216 and 219 

Paragraph 216. Provision for the spiritual development of pupils includes developing their: 

‘ability to be reflective about their own beliefs (religious or otherwise) and perspective on life 

knowledge of, and respect for, different people’s faiths, feelings and values’ 

Paragraph 219. Provision for the cultural development of pupils includes developing their: 

‘ability to recognise, and value, the things we share in common across cultural, religious, 

ethnic and socio-economic communities interest in exploring, improving understanding of 

and showing respect for different faiths and cultural diversity and the extent to which they 

understand, accept, respect and celebrate diversity. This is shown by their respect and 

attitudes towards different religious, ethnic and socio-economic groups in the local, national 

and global communities’. 

Page 22



The descriptors of spiritual and cultural development here include a recognition that 

knowledge and understanding underpins tolerance and respect. 

10. Paragraph 222 

Sources of evidence specific to personal development 

‘Inspectors will use a range of evidence to evaluate personal development, including how 

curriculum subjects such as citizenship, RE, and other areas such as personal, social, health 

and economic education, and relationship and sex education, contribute to pupils’ personal 

development’ 

This report is to be read alongside the letter from Neil Lawson from the DfE dated 22nd 

March 2019 regarding compliance with the duty to teach RE to Paul Smalley Chair of 

NASACRE. 

 

Page 23





 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 
19th June 2019 

 
Report of the Director of Corporate Services 

 
Baha’i: Membership of Committee A 

 
1 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 For SACRE to determine whether they want to extend the Membership of Committee A to 

include a representative of the Baha’i faith.   
 
2 Summary 
 
2.1 Members of SACRE are requested to consider extending the membership of SACRE to include 

a representative of the Baha’i faith.  There has been a Baha’i co-optee on SACRE for a number 
of years. 

 
3 Recommendation 
 
3.1 That members of SACRE decide or not to extend the membership. 
 
4 Background 
 
4.1 The structure of SACRE is defined by law.  It is made up of four groups (called Committees). 

The numbers of members in each Committee is set by individual SACRE’s.  
 

4.2 The make-up of Committees can vary from SACRE to SACRE as it reflects the diversity of the 
various faith communities in the locality. 

 
4.3 Committee A is made up of Christian denominations and other religions, reflecting the principle 

religious traditions of the area.  Committee B the Church of England, Committee C Teacher and 
head teacher associations and Committee D the Local Authority.   

 
4.4 SACRE can also co-opt other members who represent a small community.  Co-opteed 

members do not have any voting rights. 
 

4.5 The Baha’i faith have had a co-opted role on SACRE since 2014.  
 

4.6 Following the last meeting, the Baha’i representative requested that they are made a full 
member of SACRE with full voting rights on Committee A.   

 
4.7 The Chairman agreed to consider the request and bring it to SACRE for their determination.  

 
4.8 The Local Authority agree the membership of SACRE.  If SACRE wish to extend the 

membership to include Bahai the Portfolio Holder will be asked to formally make the decision 
based on SACRE’s recommendation.  
 

5 Equal Opportunities 
 
5.1 This report has been prepared in accordance with the County Council’s policies on equal 

opportunities. 
 
6 Financial implications 
 
6.1 Financial implications may be raised by individual items.  These have been dealt with 

elsewhere, or will be raised at future meetings of SACRE. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



 
 
Contact Officer   Mandy Pattinson 
Telephone number:   01785 278502 

Page 26



Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

                                                  19th June 2019 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 

Update on the Explore-Engage-Reflect legacy Westhill/NASACRE project 

 

1 Purpose of Report  

  

1.1 To present SACRE members with a report 
 

2 Summary  

  

2.1  Continued update on the Explore-Engage-Reflect conference 

originally supported by Westhill/NASACRE. This report shows how 

this work now continues in a revised format to support learners in 

Staffordshire in their exploration of Christianity and Islam.  
  

3 Recommendation  

  

3.1 That members of SACRE receive the reports 
 

4 Background  

  

4.1  During the year 2017-2018 SACRE received a grant from 

Westhill/NASACRE to launch the new Staffordshire Agreed 

Syllabus for RE through a conference entitled Explore-Engage-

Reflect. Youth Net in conjunction with the Entrust Minority Ethnic 

Advisory Service (MEAS) team have taken this forward and are 

providing support and resources and workshops on Christianity and 

Islam, for those schools who choose throughout Staffordshire. 

SACRE committed funds from the 2018-19 budget to further 

support this work. 

  

7 Equal Opportunities  

  

7.1 This report has been prepared in accordance with the County 

Council’s policies on equal opportunities.  
  

               8 Financial implications  

  

8.1 SACRE has provided funds from its budget to further support the 

project so that more Staffordshire learners receive the opportunity to 

engage with this project. Costs that need to be covered include the 

input from Entrust MEAS team to support the learning on Islam. This in 

turn keeps the costs down for Youth Net and therefore the costs for 

schools. If funds allow SACRE need to consider whether they are 

willing to provide support for this project going forward into 2019-2020 
   

 

Update on the Explore-Engage-Reflect legacy Westhill/NASACRE project 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



Mary Gale has facilitated the further exploration of this project and continued to monitor 

the impact. 

The release of SACRE funds to support the project has been beneficial. 

Mary has encouraged schools to take part in the project and supported the MEAS team 

and Youth Net, liaising with Alison Way, in sourcing schools that are willing to engage.  

Fifteen schools have taken part in the project including, 

Eight schools in the Stone district 

Doxey Primary Stafford,  

Flash Ley Primary Stafford,  

St Luke’s CE VC Primary Cannock, Y5 & Y6 120 children 

St Chad’s Primary Newacastle under Lyme, 

Tillington Primary Stafford,Y5 & Y6 80 children 

Parkside Primary Stafford, Y4 & Y5 66 children 

Willows Primary Lichfield KS 2 pupils 

Mary Gale has facilitated the further exploration of this project and will continue to monitor 

the impact. 

 

The feedback has been overwhelmingly positive from staff and pupils. 

Pupils have been able to express their delight at being given the opportunity to take part 

in the project comments include. 

  

What was the best thing about the RE conference?  

Learning about different cultures 

Getting information about Christianity and Islam 

Doing the booklets as we went around the zones 

Looking and using all the artefacts 

The worship music 

The Guardians of Ancora game 

Learning about how Muslims and Christians pray  

Everything 

The worship music 

The milestones toys 

The different Bibles 

The prayer plates  

Dressing up 

Using the prayer mats 

Learning more about Islam and the similarities between the two religions 

Reading the Minecraft Bible 

Glitter bottles  

Dancing to the music 

Getting married  

Finding out that there’s many different ways to pray 

  

What is the most important thing you learnt about Islam and Christianity today?  

Islam  

There would be no Islam without Muslims 

Learning about people’s lives and experiences  

Muslims try to live out the 5 Pillars no matter what circumstances they are in 

How Muslims pray 

That you don’t have to do PE if you’re fasting during Ramadan 

The different clothes Muslims wear 

Page 28



  

Christianity  

How Christians pray  

The bread represents Jesus’ body and the wine is his blood  

Jesus said the most important value is to love God and other people 

Buzz Aldrin had communion on the moon 

There is a Welsh Bible 

There is a church in the Roblox game 

Church isn’t just a building 

William Coltman was brave 

You can forgive someone even if they kill someone you love 

Christians are a lot more important than I thought 

  

What would make the RE conference even better?  

Add other activities 

More time in the zones 

More toys that we can play with 

More practical activities  

Information about pilgrimages 

Have food to try  

Go outside to do some of the learning 

 

 

Page 29





                                                                                         
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education  

19th June 2019  

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 
 

Monitoring Provision 

  

1 Purpose of Report  

  

1.1 To present members of SACRE with an update on how the monitoring provision survey 

of 2019. 
  

2 Summary  

  

2.1 Members of SACRE will receive a brief report on how the survey was carried out this 

year. These are matters on which it is appropriate to brief members of SACRE. The 

questions will be the similar to those as in previous years with the addition of one extra 

question at the start regarding requesting schools to record whether they use the 

Staffordshire Agreed Syllabus. 

  

3 Recommendation  

  

3.1 That members of SACRE receive the report. 
  

4 Background  

  

4.1 All monitoring took place via Survey Monkey. All Staffordshire LA schools were invited 

to respond to SACRE’s monitoring surveys via the Ebag at the start of the Summer term 

2019.  

   

5 Equal Opportunities  

  

5.1 This report has been prepared in accordance with the County Council’s policies on 

equal opportunities.  
  

6 Financial implications  

  

6.1 Financial implications may be raised by individual items.  These have been dealt with 

elsewhere or will be raised at future meetings of SACRE.  

 

Contact officers 

    

Mary Gale    07816374873 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 10





Agenda item 10 Monitoring of RE and CW for SACRE June 2019 
Monitoring 
Monitoring for this academic year took place via Survey Monkey. All Staffordshire primary 
schools were invited to respond to SACRE monitoring surveys via the headteacher’s E bag. 
Staffordshire SACRE received 33 responses to its primary monitoring questionnaires.  See 
Appendix 2 and 3 for a statistical breakdown. 
   
Primary Monitoring headlines: Based on 33 schools 

 Collective worship is led by a variety of staff in different settings but is most likely to 
led by a member of the Senior Leadership Team.   

 Provision for collective worship varies from school to school with some schools 
operating a year group system and others offering a system of whole school 
provision 

 A number of respondents stated that faith/community visitors contributed to collective 
worship in their schools 

 Over 30% of schools experience some form of pupil withdrawal from collective 
worship.  Numbers range between 1 and 4 pupils per school with one school 
reporting that more than 4 pupils were withdrawn. These were from Jehovah Witness 
families. 

 Over 90% of schools have reviewed their collective worship provision in the past 2 
years. 

 A number of schools commented that pupils were involved in planning and leading 
collective worship. 

 80% of schools agreed that the Agreed Syllabus clearly presents what is required by 
their school in RE. 

 80% of schools agreed that the Agreed Syllabus provides effective guidance for 
assessment in RE. 

 Provision of RE for pupils is good with over 70% of primary schools responding 
stating that classes were allocated one hour or more of RE per week.  This meets the 
recommendations of the SACRE in the agreed syllabus guidance.  

 In 80% of schools, Teaching Assistants (TAs) were employed in the delivery of RE.  
This included TAs delivering RE in PPA time, supporting individual pupils and, in 
some cases, HLTA’s planned and delivered the RE Curriculum. 

 Over 80% of schools had reviewed their RE provision in the past 3 years. 
 
This survey has provided SACRE with an up to date picture of RE and CW provision in 
primary schools as far as practically possible. Opportunities should be found in the next 
academic year to remind and assist schools to make the best use of the CPD that is 
available via Entrust to support the use of the revised Staffordshire Agreed Syllabus. 
 
Secondary Monitoring headlines: Based on 7 schools for RE and 2 schools for CW 
 
Collective worship is typically led by the leadership team within schools. 
Provision for collective worship in schools varies.   
Most school meet together for collective worship at least once each week.   
In other schools’ provision is typically delivered via a system of year group/house group 
gatherings. 
No schools reported withdrawals from collective worship. 
60% reported that they use the AS and those who do not were Aided schools. 
In 70% of schools RE specialists are employed in the delivery of RE supported by non-
specialists this is drop from 100% in previous years 
Non- specialists support is on the increase, now up to 70%. 
In one school the number of non-specialists assisting exceeded 3. 
100% of schools had at least one specialist RE room available 

Page 33



In 100% of schools RE was taught for at least one hour a week and in some cases more at 
KS 3.  
This dropped to 60% of schools at KS 4. 
RE was taught for less than one hour a week in 40% of schools. 
30% of schools provided Religious Education in the Sixth Form, 70% do not. 
In the main this provision was linked to examination. 
In 100% of schools’ capitation had either remained the same or decreased. 

 

Page 34



Appendix 2  
 
Monitoring RE Provision Staffordshire Secondary Schools 
 
Q1 Do you use the 2016 Staffordshire Agreed Syllabus guidance?  

Answer Choices  

 
Yes               4 

 
No                 3 

Comments   Academy or Diocesan school 

 
Q 2 How much time is allocated to RE per class per week in KS3?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
One hour                                        4 

 
Less than one hour  

 
More than one hour                        3 

Comments     
From Sep ‘19, in Y10 and 11, students are only 
guaranteed c. 30 min per week avge, unless they opt 
for GCSE RS. This is a change to the current 
situation where all students do GCSE full RS, 1 hour 
per week, Y9-11 

 
100 mins per week 

 
Q 3 How much time is allocated to RE per class per week in KS4?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
One hour                                2 

 
Less than one hour               3 

 
More than one hour               2 

Comments 
3 hours per fortnight to complete the full GCSE 
course  

 

 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
Q 4 How many RE specialists will be teaching RE in this academic year?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
None                        2 

 
One                             1 

 
Two                             2                    

 
Three                           2 

Comments 
Will be in place from Sept 19 
 
Team of 5 core RS teachers - 3 qualified, 2 with 
significant experience teaching RS as bulk of their 
timetable 

 
Q 5 How many non-specialists will be teaching RE in this academic year?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
None                              2 

 
One                                 1 

 
Two                                 3 

 
Three                               0 

 
More                                1 

Comments 
Although non-specialists, these staff have been 
delivering largely RS to exam level successfully for 
many years 

 
Q 6 Do all of your pupils study towards a qualification in RE?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
Yes                                            1 

 
No                                              6 

Comments          

Page 36



Answer Choices – 

As of September, 2019 

 
Q 7 What qualification in RE does your school offer to its pupils?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
Full Course GCSE                                  4 

Short course                                           1 

 
Integrated Humanities GCSE                0 

Other                                                       2 

Comments 

 
Q 8 Do you provide RE provision post 16?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
No                                                                     5 

 
Yes Examination group only                          1 

 
Yes Core RE only                                             0 

 
Yes both Examination and Core RE              1 

Comments 
This is new for Sept 2019 A level 

 
Q 9 How many specialist RE teaching rooms do you have within school?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
None                                                       0 

 
One                                                         3 

 
Two                                                          2 

 
Three                                                        1 

 
More                                                        1 

Comment 

 

Page 37



 
 
 
Q 10 Has the money allocated to RE increased or decreased this academic 
year?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
Increased                                                  0 

 
Decreased                                                1 

 
Stayed the same                                     6 

Comments 
Decreased -By virtue of the fact that our faculty pot 
stays the same, but we are being asked to deliver 
more CPSHE and Citizenship from the same 
allocation 

 
 
Collective Worship in Staffordshire secondary Schools 
 
Q1 Who has responsibility for the organisation of collective worship within 
school?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
Head teacher / Principal  

 
Senior Leadership Team             2 

 
RE teacher/department  

Comments 

 
Q2 How often does the whole school meet together for collective worship?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
Never                                                                                 1 

 
1-3 times a week  

 
4-5 times a week  

 
We have a system of Year Group/House/Key Stage collective 

Page 38



Answer Choices – 

worship  

 
Collective worship takes place in tutor time                   1 

Comments 

 
Q3 Do you have pupils withdrawn from collective worship?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
None                                                          2 

 
One  

 
Two  

 
Three  

 
Four  

 
More  

 
Q 4 Do you use specialist materials for collective worship?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
Yes                                                            1 

 
No                                                              1 

 
Don’t know  

 
Comment  

 
 
Q 5 Do you provide training for delivery of collective worship?  
 

Answer Choices – 

 
Yes 

 
No                                                                    2 

 

Page 39



Answer Choices – 

Don’t know  

 
Comment  

 
 
 

Page 40



Monitoring RE Provision Primary Survey 

Q1 Do you use the 2016 Staffordshire Agreed Syllabus guidance?  

Answer Choices  

 
Yes   31 

 
No      2 

Comments Aided school. 
                   Catholic school 

 

Q2 How much time is allocated to RE in KS1 per class each week?  

Answer Choices  

 
one hour a week   22 

 
more than one hour a week   4 

 
less than one hour a week    7 

Comments  10%  of timetable,  
                     Covered in assembly time 
                     Themed weeks 

 

Q3 How much time is allocated to RE in KS2 per class per week?  

Answer Choices  

 
One hour a week     24 

 
more than one hour a week     5 

 
less than one hour a week       4 

Comments      10%  of timetable,  
                        Covered in assembly time 
                        Themed weeks 

 

Q4 Is your RE planning based on the Staffordshire Agreed Syllabus guidance?  

Answer Choices  

 
Yes       31 

 
No          2 

Comments  Aided school. 
                    Catholic school 
                    Use Understanding  
                    Christianity in addition 

 

Page 41



Q5 Have teaching staff received access to RE CPD to support planning e.g. networks, 

RE Conference?  

Answer Choices  

 
Yes                   26 

 
No                     7 

Comments      Diocesan training 
                         Net work training 

 

Q6 Are TA's employed in the delivery of RE?  

Answer Choices  

 
Yes          22 

 
No           11 

Comments  TA in support role 
                     Higher Level Teaching assistant 
                     Only in KS 1 
                     Provision on a rotation 

 

Q7 Where TA's are employed in the delivery of RE please state how:  

Answer Choices  

 
Supporting specific groups of pupils      12 

 
Delivering lessons during PPA time         16 

 
Planning and delivering the RE Curriculum     5 

Comments   TA in support role 
                     Higher Level Teaching assistant 
                     Only in KS 1 
                     Assessment of RE 

 

Q8 When was RE last reviewed by the School SLT (including the Governing Board)?  

Answer Choices  

 
In the last six months        8 

 
In the last year                   12 

 
In the last two years           11 

 
In the last three years         2 

Comments       Termly reviews 
                          Review due soon 

 

Page 42



Q9 The Agreed Syllabus clearly presents what is required by my school in RE:  

Answer Choices  

 
Agree                                        30 

 
Disagree                                     3 

 
Comments    Aided school. 
                      Catholic school 
                      We are using the syllabus but it is 
difficult to follow the plans. We are for the majority a 
white Christian school and have found challenges to 
make visits or have visits from other religious bodies. 

 

Q10 The Agreed Syllabus provides effective guidance for assessment in RE:  

Answer Choices  

Agree                                         25 

Disagree                                    8 

 
Comments                     Could be clearer 
                                        Use Diocesan assessment 

 

Q11 How long has the subject leader been in role? 

Answer Choices  

 
New to the role                            5 

 
One to two years                        8 

 
Three years or more                  20 

Comments                             Completing 3rd year 
                                   Was RE lead in another school 

 

Collective Worship in Staffordshire Primary Schools 

Q1 Who has responsibility for the organisation of Collective Worship within school?  

Answer Choices  

   
Headteacher                17 

 
Deputy                            8 

 
Teaching staff                 7 

 
Support staff                   0 

 
Other                              1 

Page 43



 

Q2 Does your school operate a system of Year Group/Key Stage collective worship?  

Answer Choices  

 
No, it always takes place as a whole school event                  14 

 
Yes 1-3 days a week                                                                16 

 
Yes 4-5 days a week                                                                 3 

 

Q3 Does your school operate a system of classroom worship? 

Answer Choices  

 
No                                                  5                           

 
Yes occasionally                         25 

 
Yes daily                                      3 

 

Q4 Do faith/community visitors contribute to your collective worship?  

Answer Choices  

 
No                                          2 

 
Yes, occasionally                  31 

 
Yes, daily  

 

Q5 Do you have any pupils withdrawn from collective worship?  

Answer Choices  

 
No                          26 

 
One                        3 

 
Two                         1 

 
Three                      2 

 
Four                       0 

 
More                       1 

 

Page 44



Q6 When was your collective worship policy last reviewed?  

Answer Choices  

 
In the last six months                        6 

 
In the last year                                 12 

 
In the last two years                         15 

 

Q7. Do pupils take an active part in the planning of whole school collective worship? 

Answer Choices  

          
Yes                                                     9 

 
No                                                       9 

 
Occasionally                                       15 

 

Q8. Do pupils take an active part in the delivery of whole school collective worship? 

Answer Choices  

 
Yes                                                        11 

  
No                                                           2 

 
Occasionally                                          20 

 

Q9. Collective worship is a valuable part of the school day: 

Answer Choices  

 
Yes                                                    31 

 
No                                                      2 

 

Q10 Does your school use published resources for worship? 

Answer Choices  

 
No                                                            13 

 
Yes                                                           18 

 
Name one or two                                        2 
 Understanding Christianity 
 Twelve Baskets themes 
 Diocesan publications 

Page 45



 

 

 

 

Page 46



                  Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

June 19th 2019 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 

Response from AREIAC to the report from the Commission on 

Religious Education-Religion and World Views: The Way Forward – A 

National Plan for RE See Appendix 2 

 

1 Purpose of Report  

  

1.1 To present SACRE members with an opportunity to reflect again on 

the response from the government on the report from the 

Commission on Religious Education-Religion and World Views: The 

Way Forward - A National Plan for RE and the subsequent 

response to the government’s response                                                                                                           

  

2 Summary  

  

2.1 The Commission on RE published its final report on Sunday 9th 

September after a lengthy consultation period. The Commission 

calls for an overhaul of the subject to include teaching about non-

religious beliefs to better reflect the diversity of modern society. It 

suggests a National Plan for RE and a change to the name and role 

of SACRES. The government has responded, and AREIAC has 

responded to their response as per the Appendix 

  

3 Recommendation  

  

3.1 That members of SACRE use this opportunity to reflect on the 

response to the report and the recommendations. 
 

 

4 Background  

  

4.1 The Commission on RE published its final report on Sunday 9th 

September 2018 and the government responded in December 

2018. AREIAC has responded. 
  

5 Equal Opportunities  

  

5.1 This report has been prepared in accordance with the County 

Council’s policies on equal opportunities.  
  

6 Financial implications  

  

6.1 There are no immediate financial implications  

 

Contact Officer:    
Mary Gale   07816374873  

Page 47

Agenda Item 11



 

Page 48



Appendix 2  (Agenda Item 11) 

 

AREIAC Executive response to Religion and Worldviews: 

the way forward. A national plan for RE.  

 

The AREIAC Executive has considered the final report of the Commission on RE and offers the 

following in response.  

First and foremost is our gratitude to the commissioners for the hard work and thorough research 

they have individually and collectively contributed to this over the last two years. We recognise both 

the enormity of the task and the challenge it must have been given the wide range of views and 

interests of RE. 

The report has much to commend it. It offers a structure and process for the way forward, which if 

adequately supported and resourced, will build on the existing strengths of RE in schools and in 

many areas across the country and so promote quality RE for all.  

The change in name might be significant for some, but AREIAC feels that what matters most is that 

we provide quality RE for all pupils in all schools across the country. Whatever we call the subject, 

there needs to be clarity about what it is and above all what it is not.  

The recommendation for a national entitlement strikes a balance between a set of national 

principles for developing coherent programmes of study and local involvement. There is still work to 

be done on the national entitlement and AREIAC is looking forward to sharing our wealth of 

experience and expertise, working with partners and teachers in this critical next stage. 

Our members also have extensive experience and expertise in ITE, CPD and leadership development 

and we fully support the well thought through recommendations in this area. We are, however, 

concerned the role of SACREs and their wealth of local experience should not be lost or overlooked 

in these exciting developments.  

One concern expressed universally in our discussions relates to the right of withdrawal from RE. We 

recognise that this is legally complex but have some reservations about the wording of 

recommendation 11 iii, which weakens the principle that RE is an important entitlement of all pupils. 

We recognise that this is not the intention, but would encourage all involved to emphasise to 

government that by clarifying the situation it must strengthen rather than weaken school’s provision 

for a coherent RE curriculum. 

Our over-all view is that this report, properly resourced and collaboratively developed, provides a 

good way forward for RE. The crucial work remains to be done and we are confident that AREIAC 

members will be at the centre of this in partnership with other RE bodies, schools and teachers. The 

commissioners should be thanked and commended for laying the foundations for future 

developments. 

 

Note  

Page 49



AREIAC is the organisation Association of Religious Education Inspectors Advisers and Consultants 

and as such its members have diverse and wide-ranging views on the nature of RE. This response 

reflects the professional dialogue of experts and not necessarily the views of all members.  

Page 50



                  Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

June 19th 2019 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 

The Church of England Statement of Entitlement for RE 

1 Purpose of Report  

 

1.1 To present SACRE members with an opportunity to reflect upon the document 

The Church of England Statement of Entitlement for RE 

  

2 Summary  

  

2.1 This is an updated version- Feb 2019- of the original document- 

The Church of England Statement of Entitlement for RE, which is 

relevant to Church of England schools. It will be used to support the 

inspection of those schools from Summer 2019. 

  

3 Recommendation  

  

3.1 That members of SACRE use this opportunity to reflect on the 

document and note how it mirrors the new Ofsted Inspection 

Framework, supporting the curriculum broad and balanced 

approach  
 

4 Background  

  

4.1 This was updated by Derek Holloway to support Church Of England 

schools and to guide the new SIAMS inspection framework. 
 

5 Equal Opportunities  

  

5.1 This report has been prepared in accordance with the County 

Council’s policies on equal opportunities.  
  

6 Financial implications  

  

6.1 There are no immediate financial implications  

 

Contact Officer:    
Mary Gale   07816374873  

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 12





 

 

 

 

Religious Education in Church of England Schools   

A Statement of Entitlement  

Religious education in a Church school should enable every child to flourish and to live life in all its 

fullness. (John 10:10).  It will help educate for dignity and respect encouraging all to live well 

together  

Such an approach is offered through a commitment to generous hospitality, being true to  

our underpinning faith, but with a deep respect for the integrity of other religious traditions  

(and worldviews) and for the religious freedom of each person.1 

 

A high-quality sequential religious education2 (RE) programme is essential to meet the statutory 

requirement for all state funded schools, including academies and free schools, to teach a full 

curriculum that prepares pupils for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of life in 

modern Britain. Central to religious education in Church schools is the study of Christianity as a 

living and diverse faith, focused on the teaching of Jesus and the Church. There is a clear 

expectation that as inclusive communities, church schools provide sequenced learning about a 

range of religions and worldviews3 fostering respect for others. In voluntary aided schools, RE 

must be taught in accordance with the trust deed: this document will help schools interpret that 

legal requirement.  In foundation and voluntary controlled schools with a religious character, RE 

                                                           
1 The Church of England Education Office, Church of England Vision for Education: Deeply Christian, 

Serving the Common Good. (The Church of England Education Office, 2016), available at 

https://www.churchofengland.org/more/education-and-schools/vision-education 

2 Section 48 of the 2005 Education Act requires the inspection of religious education in schools 

which have a religious character. The term religious education (RE) is therefore used throughout 

this document as it is connected to the Section 48 SIAMS inspection and, if and until the law 

changes we will need to continue to use the term. This does not stop individual schools, MATs or 

dioceses using other names including Religion and Worldviews for the subject.  

3 The term worldviews is used throughout the document to refer to a person’s way of 

understanding, experiencing and responding to the world. It can be described as a philosophy of 

life or an approach to life. It could refer to an ‘institutional’ worldview to describe organised 

worldviews including religions as well as Humanism, Secularism and Atheism or a ‘personal’ 

worldview for an individual’s way of understanding and living in the world which may be drawn 

from one or many institutionalised worldviews.  Based on Commission on Religious Education, 

Religion and worldviews: The way forward A national plan for RE (Religious Education Council for 

England and Wales 2018) p4.  

 

Page 53

https://www.churchofengland.org/more/education-and-schools/vision-education


 

 

 

must be taught according to the locally agreed syllabus for RE unless parents request RE in 

accordance with the trust deed of the school. In academies and free schools RE must be taught in 

accordance with the funding agreement.  

The effectiveness of denominational education in Church schools is evaluated during the statutory 

inspection of Anglican and Methodist schools (SIAMS) section 48 inspection. That subsequent 

judgement will reflect the expectations set out in this document. The SIAMS evaluation schedule 

assesses the way RE contributes to the outworking of church school’s Christian vision. It highlights 

the responsibility of Church school leaders to ensure that pupils flourish academically through the 

provision of high-quality RE. In addition, in voluntary aided schools, a judgement on standards in 

teaching and learning in RE is included in the SIAMS report.  

The Entitlement: provision, profile and priority  

In a Church school the pupils and their families can expect an RE curriculum that enables pupils to 

acquire a rich, deep knowledge and understanding of Christian belief and practice, this should 

include the ways in which it is unique and diverse. Parents can expect the use of high-quality 

resources, for example, the Understanding Christianity resource. Pupils can expect that teaching 

and learning in Church schools will use an approach that engages with biblical text and theological 

ideas.  

Pupils can expect that a Church school RE curriculum will engage and challenge them through an 

exploration of core concepts and questions. They can expect Church schools to provide 

meaningful and informed dialogue with a range of religions and worldviews. There should be 

opportunities for them to understand the role of foundational texts, beliefs, rituals, and practices 

and how they help form identity in a range of religions and worldviews. Pupils should explore how 

these may change in different times, places and cultures. RE will go beyond a sociological study of 

religious phenomena and will introduce pupils to a range of relevant disciplines including theology, 

philosophy and the human and social sciences. In all Church schools progress in RE should be 

significant and attainment high enabling pupils to develop confident religious literacy. 

Parents and pupils can expect that in a Church school RE will have a high profile within the 

curriculum and will be a priority for senior leaders. The RE curriculum is intrinsic to the 

outworking of a Church school’s Christian vision in enabling all pupils to flourish. In addition, the 

RE curriculum will contribute to British values and spiritual moral social and cultural development  

Learning activities must provide fully for the needs of all pupils. Pupils should develop a wide range 

of skills including enquiry, analysis, interpretation, evaluation and reflection. Pupils should have a 

safe space to explore their own religious, spiritual and/or philosophical ways of seeing, living and 

thinking, believing and belonging.  They should have opportunities to engage in meaningful and 

informed dialogue with those of all religions and worldviews. 

Curriculum statement: challenging, accurate and diverse  

 

In all Church schools religious education must be considered an academic subject. All pupils are 

entitled to religious education that is delivered in an objective, critical and pluralistic manner. 

Pupils are entitled to a balanced RE curriculum which enquires into religions and worldviews 

Page 54



3 
 

 

through theology, philosophy and the human and the social sciences.  It should be a coherent 

curriculum that enables progress through ordered and sequential learning developing both 

knowledge and skills. There should be a clear curriculum vision and intent, a structure for 

implementation and provision and a process for evaluating impact.  

Aims and objectives 

•   To know about and understand Christianity as a diverse global living faith through the 

exploration of core beliefs using an approach that critically engages with biblical text.  

• To gain knowledge and understanding of a range of religions and worldviews appreciating 

diversity, continuity and change within the religions and worldviews being studied. 

• To engage with challenging questions of meaning and purpose raised by human existence 

and experience.   

• To recognise the concept of religion and its continuing influence on Britain’s cultural 

heritage and in the lives of individuals and societies in different times, cultures and places.  

• To explore their own religious, spiritual and philosophical ways living, believing and 

thinking.   

Curriculum balance and time: sufficient, appropriate and balanced  

Reflecting the school’s trust deed or academy funding agreement parents and pupils are entitled to 

expect that in Church schools Christianity should be the majority religion studied in each year 

group and should be at least 50% of curriculum time. Sufficient dedicated curriculum time, meeting 

explicitly RE objectives, however organised, should be committed to the delivery of RE. This 

should aim to be close to 10% but must be no less than 5% in key stages 1-4.  

 

All pupils in Church schools should follow a recognised and appropriate qualification or course in 

RE or Religious Studies at KS 4. This includes pupils who have SEND. The study of Christianity will 

be a significant part of any Religious Studies qualification offered.  

 

The school must make it possible for those students who achieve suitable grades at GCSE or 

equivalent to follow appropriate A level courses. This should be in addition to the provision of 

core RE entitlement for all students at KS5 which should continue to develop student’s 

understanding of Christianity and other religions and worldviews. 

Schools must take note that the RE entitlement is totally separate from requirements for 

collective worship. Collective worship must not be considered curriculum time for RE or the 

teaching of RE. 

 

Developing staff expertise and knowledge: confidence specialism professionalism 

Pupils in Church schools are entitled to be taught by teachers who have a secure subject 

knowledge and are confident in helping them navigate and challenge cultural and religious 

stereotypes, prejudice and extremism.  It should be a priority in Church schools to build up staff 

expertise in RE specifically, but not exclusively, working towards:  

• at least one member of staff having RE qualifications or receiving specialist training.   

Page 55



 

 

 

• secondary schools employing specialist RE teachers and deploying them effectively to ensure 

pupils receive specialist teaching.   

• all staff teaching RE having access to subject specific professional development.  

• all staff teaching RE knowing how to create and maintain classrooms in which academic 

rigour is balanced with respect for different personal beliefs and identities. 

• all teaching staff and governors understanding of the distinctive role and purpose of RE 

within church schools.  

• a governing body which is monitoring standards in RE effectively.  

The role of the Diocesan Boards of Education  

One function of Diocesan Boards of Education (DBEs) is to promote, or assist in the promotion 

of, religious education in schools in the diocese. This should be fulfilled by monitoring the quality 

of religious education in Church schools through taking note of SIAMS inspection reports and by 

securing high quality training for all schools throughout the diocese. This will help ensure that the 

provision for religious education is effective and is able to fulfil the expectations of this statement. 

Support for effective and excellent RE 

Teachers in Church schools belong to a wider educational and church community.  They are 

entitled to expect positive support in providing effective and excellent religious education from:  

• a named member of staff responsible for religious education and where that person is the 

headteacher someone who shadows the role 

•  their senior management team and their governing body, especially foundation governors or 

academy equivalents  

• their local Diocesan Board of Education, including a school’s adviser with an appropriate 

religious education background  

• the Church of England Education Office  

• local clergy and other ministers and Christian communities.  

 

 

Derek Holloway 

School Character and SIAMS Development Manager 

February 2019 

 

Page 56



 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

June 19th 2019 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 

Current budget 2018-19 and proposed new budget 19-20 

  

1 Purpose of Report  

  

1.1 To advise members of SACRE on the current budget position for 2018-2019. 
  

2 Summary  

  

2.1 A breakdown of the current SACRE budget for the financial year 2018-2019 to date 

will be presented at the meeting 
  

3 Recommendation  

  

3.1 That members of SACRE receive the report  
  

4 Background  

  

4.1 A budget had been made available to support the work of SACRE during the 

financial year 2018 – 2019 as approved by the Corporate Director (Children and 

Lifelong Learning). The outturn statement is provided.  
  

4.2 The budget statement for 2019-20 was requested from the County Council and is 

included here. Please note the carry forward of the Westhill project money. 
 

4.3 The 2019-2029 budget will continue to be monitored and clarified. 
  

5 Equal Opportunities  

  

5.1 This report has been prepared in accordance with the County Council’s policies on 

equal opportunities.  
  

6 Financial implications  

  

6.1 Financial implications are indicated in the budget account.  
  

Contact Officer: 
Mary Gale 07816374873  

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 13





Screen Data Export - SACRE (2018-19) as at 13.03.19
Option NML400

Username

Date 13/03/19

Time 14:24

GL Account Codes for : Enquiry Group: Curr Budget (v2) v Act + GRNI/GL Account Code Range: EM1100/***** to EM1100/***** / Enquiry Year: 2018/ Period: 00 to 12
GL Account Code Description Current Budget (v2)Actual + Grni Actuals Variance Bud v(Act +GRNI)

EM110010002 SACRE Teachers Gross 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

EM110041008 SACRE Catering Provisions 0.00 20.00 20.00 20.00

EM110046204 SACRE Conference Fees 0.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

EM110047202 SACRE Subscriptions General 0.00 205.00 100.00 205.00

EM110048342 SACRE Contingency 5,950.00 0.00 0.00 (5,950.00)

EM110064550 SACRE Tfrs to Oth Accounts (8,650.00) (8,650.00) (8,650.00) 0.00

(2,700.00) (8,325.00) (8,430.00) (5,625.00)

Westhill Endowment received 2017-18 0.00 (2,725.00) 0.00 (2,725.00)

P
age 59





Screen Data Export - SACRE (2019-20) as at 6-6-2019
Option NML400

Username

Date

Time

GL Account Codes for : Enquiry Group: Curr Budget (v2) v Act + GRNI/GL Account Code Range: EM1100/***** to EM1100/***** / Enquiry Year: 2019/ Period: 00 to 12
GL Account Code Description Current Budget (v2)Actual + Grni Actuals Variance Bud v(Act +GRNI)

EM110010002 SACRE Teachers Gross 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

EM110041008 SACRE Catering Provisions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

EM110046204 SACRE Conference Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

EM110047202 SACRE Subscriptions General 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

EM110048342 SACRE Contingency 6,070.00 0.00 0.00 (6,070.00)

EM110064550 SACRE Tfrs to Oth Accounts 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Will be an in year adjustment

6,070.00 0.00 0.00 (6,070.00)

Westhill Endowment received 2017-18 0.00 (2,725.00) 0.00 (2,725.00) Bought forward

P
age 61





 

                                                                                                      
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

19th June 2019 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities 

Applications for variation of practice  
  

1 Purpose of Report  

  

1.1 To consider any applications for variation of practice to religious 

education and or collective worship.   
  

2 Summary  

  

2.1 Upon receipt of a written application from a headteacher of a 

county school SACRE should determine whether it is appropriate to 

dis-apply the requirement for broadly Christian collective worship 

and/or make amendments to the way the Agreed Syllabus is 

followed in the case of that school.     
  

3 Recommendation  

  

3.1 That members of SACRE are updated on any new developments in 

this area.  
  

4 Background  

  

4.1 No applications have been received at this time.   
  

  

5 Equal Opportunities  

  

5.1 This report has been prepared in accordance with the County 

Council’s policies on equal opportunities.  
  

6 Financial implications  

  

6.1 There are no immediate financial implications  
  

   

Contact Officer:      

Mary Gale     07816374873  

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 14




	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 6 February 2019
	5 An Update on Key Issues
	6 An Update on NASACRE
	7 The new Ofsted Education Framework - implications for the teaching of Religious Education
	SACRE Agenda item 7 appendix 1 letter from Nasacre
	SACRE Agenda item 7 app 2 New Ofsted framework implications June 2019

	8 Extension of Committee A - to include a representative of the Baha'i faith
	9 Update on the Explore-Engage-Reflect legacy, Westhill/NASACRE Project
	10 Monitoring Provision - An analysis of the survey to Schools on RE and Collective worship
	SACRE Agenda Item 10 app 1 Monitoring of RE and CW for SACRE June 2019
	SACRE Agenda item 10 Appenidx 2 Monitoring of RE and CW in Secondary schools June 2019
	SACRE Agenda item 10 Appendix 3 Monitoring Primary RE and CW June 2019

	11 AREIAC's response to Commission on Religious Education's Report - Religion and World Views: The Way Forward and the REC response to the Government - December 2018
	SACRE Agenda Item 11  appendix June 2019 AREIAC response to CORE report appendix

	12 Church of England Statement of Entitlement for RE
	SACRE Agenda item 12 app RE Statement of Entitlement document

	13 Current Budget 2018/19 and Proposed New Budget 2019/20
	Copy of SACRE Agenda Item 13 Budget (18-19) for June 19th 2019 meeting
	Copy of SACRE Agenda item 13 Budget (19-20) (1)

	14 Application for Variation of Practice

